

Cloud User Guide

Getting Started



Notices

For details, see the following topics:

- Notices
- Third-party acknowledgments

Notices

Copyright © 2000–2021. Aurea Software, Inc. ("Aurea"). All Rights Reserved. These materials and all Aurea products are copyrighted and all rights are reserved by Aurea.

This document is proprietary and confidential to Aurea and is available only under a valid non-disclosure agreement. No part of this document may be disclosed in any manner to a third party without the prior written consent of Aurea. The information in these materials is for informational purposes only and Aurea assumes no responsibility for any errors that may appear therein. Aurea reserves the right to revise this information and to make changes from time to time to the content hereof without obligation of Aurea to notify any person of such revisions or changes.

You are hereby placed on notice that the software, its related technology and services may be covered by one or more United States ("US") and non-US patents. A listing that associates patented and patent-pending products included in the software, software updates, their related technology and services with one or more patent numbers is available for you and the general public's access at https://markings.ip-dynamics.ai/esw/ (the "Patent Notice") without charge. The association of products-to-patent numbers at the Patent Notice may not be an exclusive listing of associations, and other unlisted patents or pending patents may also be associated with the products. Likewise, the patents or pending patents may also be associated with unlisted products. You agree to regularly review the products-to-patent number(s) association at the Patent Notice to check for updates.

Aurea and Aurea Software are registered trademarks of Aurea Software, Inc. in the United States and/or other countries. Additional Aurea trademarks, including registered trademarks, are available at: https://www.aurea.com/legal/trademarks/. Jive is a registered trademark of Jive Software, Inc. in the United States and/or other countries. Additional Jive trademarks, including registered trademarks, are available at: https://www.jivesoftware.com/legal/.

Third-party acknowledgments

The following third-party trademarks may appear in one or more Jive guides:

- Amazon is a registered trademark of Amazon Technologies, Inc.
- Apache and Derby is a trademark of Apache Software Foundation.
- Chrome is a trademark of Google Inc.
- Eclipse is a registered trademark of the Eclipse Foundation, Inc.
- HP-UX is a registered trademark of Hewlett-Packard Development Company, L.P.
- IBM, AIX, DB2, and WebSphere are registered trademarks of International Business Machines Corporation.
- Intel and Pentium are registered trademarks of Intel Corporation in the U.S. and/or other countries.
- JBoss is a registered trademark, and CentOS is a trademark, of Red Hat, Inc. in the U.S. and other countries.
- Linux is a registered trademark of Linus Torvalds.
- Microsoft, Active Directory, Internet Explorer, SharePoint, SQL Server, Visual Studio, and Windows are registered trademarks or trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.
- Mozilla and Firefox are registered trademarks of the Mozilla Foundation.
- Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates.
- Progress and OpenEdge are registered trademarks of Progress Software Corporation or one of its subsidiaries or affiliates in the U.S. and other countries.
- Red Hat and Red Hat Enterprise Linux are registered trademarks of Red Hat, Inc. in the U.S. and other countries.
- SAP and SAP NetWeaver are registered trademarks of SAP SE in Germany and in several other countries.
- SUSE is a registered trademark of SUSE, LLC.
- Ubuntu is a registered trademark of Canonical Limited in the United States and/or other countries.
- UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group in the United States and other countries.

All other marks contained herein are for informational purposes only and may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Getting started	6
Registering in community	6
Exploring community	9
Overview of streams	10
Tips for using News	13
Support Center	13
Tips for using Inbox	14
Tips for using actions	15
Alerts	16
Setting up your profile	16
Updating your status	17
Joining groups	18
Rating, liking, and marking content	20
Creating content	21
Participating	
Alerts for people, places, and content items	23
Finding stuff you need	24
Pinning pages for quick access	25
Jive places: spaces, groups, and projects	26
Understanding pages in places	27
Inviting new community members	29

Aurea global support

If you encounter a problem while using an Aurea product or require assistance with downloading the software or upgrading a product release, please, try to:

- Search the articles on the Aurea Knowledge Base for solutions to your issues.
- Search the product documentation and other product-related information that are also available on Support Central.

If you still cannot find a solution, open a ticket on Aurea Support Central. Information about the support organization is available on Support Portal as well.

You can also find the setup files on Support Portal.

For information about purchasing an upgrade or professional services, contact your account executive. If you do not know who your account executive is, or for other queries, contact us through our website.

1 Getting started

Get acquainted with your community and learn the basics of communicating, collaborating, and innovating the Jive way.

For details, see the following topics:

- Registering in community
- Exploring community
- Setting up your profile
- Updating your status
- Joining groups
- Rating, liking, and marking content
- Creating content
- Participating
- Alerts for people, places, and content items
- Finding stuff you need
- Pinning pages for quick access
- Jive places: spaces, groups, and projects
- Understanding pages in places
- Inviting new community members

Registering in community

Depending on the community configuration, an account may be provided for you, or you can create it yourself.

Some of the communities you cannot access without registering. In other communities you can browse the content, but with registration you get access to additional useful features, such as useful notifications and direct messages.

Registration in Jive communities depends on the community configuration. In some communities, a user account may be created for you by administrators, and they provide you with details for logging in to the community. Or you may be able to create an account for yourself.

Requirements

You must have a valid email address which is used to verify your identity.

Self-registering in community

Generally, you should follow the steps below to self-register.

- 1. Open the community URL. The login and registration page should be opened. If another page opens, click **Register** to go to the registration page.
- 2. Next, you provide your email which you will use to access the community. Generally, one of the following options should be available.
 - Click **Click here to create one** to start creating your account.

Login	Don't have an account?
Username	Click here to create one.
Password	
□ Keep me logged in	
Log in	
I forgot my password	
I forgot my username	

• If you are required to confirm your email address first, enter your email address and click **Confirm address**.

Login	Don't have an account?
Username	After confirming your email address, you'll be able to create an account and access the site.
	Your email address
Password	
	Confirm address
□ Keep me logged in	
Log in	
I forgot my password	
I forgot my username	

Note: Adding hashtag symbols (#) in email address for registration might result to URL displaying inappropriately in the User Profile page. As much as possible, refrain from using this special character in the **Email Address** box.

You receive an email with further instruction for registration. Click on the provided link to continue.

- If SSO is enabled in the community, you can use your other credentials, such as Google or Facebook, to log in. The information about you is usually received from this account, and your user account is created immediately.
- 3. You may be required to review the Terms and Conditions agreement and the cookie usage policy. It is required to accept the conditions to access the community.
- Then you need to create your user password and provide some information about yourself. The required information is marked accordingly.

If you registered with an SSO account, you might not see this step.

5. When you finish, click Create Account.

Your account is created. Depending on the community setup, you may be immediately redirected to the community home page. Alternatively, you may need to wait while your request is validated. After that, you will receive an email with the results and further instructions.

With your new account, you can explore the community. For more information, see **Getting started** on page 6.

Exploring community

Here's an overview of the main components you can see and use in your community.

News page

The News page functions as a central news page for your community. It features a variety of streams and tiles designed to bring you the latest news and information. You won't see News if your community manager has not enabled the feature or changed the name of the News page.

The top menu of the News page organizes community activity into streams such as Following, All Activity, and your own custom streams. From any stream, you can view and interact with the activity that flows through your community. For more information about streams, see Overview of streams.

You can see the following streams on the News page by default:

News (top-level view)	The News view aggregates and displays only new content posted in your News and Following streams. However, unlike your other streams, the News view does not show content updates and comments in the stream. In addition, content that gets updated or interacted with is not posted at the top of the News view. Consequently, the News view shows only new things. For more information about the News view, see Overview of News.
Custom News streams	These streams are designed by your community manager to bring you the latest news and information. These are the streams listed next to the News stream in the top menu. For example, you could have a stream there called CEO's Blog or My Department. Note that you can't delete these streams or change the email notifications settings for them, unlike your own custom streams.
Following stream	This stream shows the activity of people, places, and content that you are following in the community. If you are new to the community, you might want to browse through People > All to begin following your teammates or other people who interest you. To see who you're following, click People > Following .
Your custom streams	Click Create New Stream to create a custom stream containing only activity related to the people, places, and items you specify. You can have one or more custom streams. For example, you might create a My Current Project stream to follow everything related to your current project. For more information about creating custom streams, see Creating custom streams .
All Activity: Most Recent stream	This stream shows all the public activity in your community that you have permission to see. Watching this can be useful if you are new to the community and want to find people, places, and content to add to your custom streams.

All Activity: TopThis stream shows the most valuable and interesting community
activity. Here you can see items that are receiving a lot of likes
and comments.

Note: Content items can be excluded from the **Top & Trending** stream. For more information, see **Removing content items from Top and Trending**.

Your Inbox

Click the **A** button next to your avatar in the upper right corner to see your Inbox. Inbox includes the following pages:

- Inbox Inbox includes updates to things you've participated in: direct messages, @mentions, and shares, plus any items you pulled in by following them in Inbox. For more information, see Tips for using Inbox on page 14.
- Your View Your View lets you set up a page for yourself, so that you can get to your most-used items quickly. You can change what you see from Your View whenever you want. For example, you might want to update Your View when you change projects or teams, or when you want to watch new things in your community. Note that you won't see Your View if your community manager has not enabled the feature. For more information on setting up Your View, see Using Your View.
- Actions Actions remind you to complete a task or action item that's been assigned to you. For more information, see Tips for using actions on page 15.

Overview of streams

A stream shows you real-time updates of activity as people interact with content, people, and places in the community.

You can see streams on the News page and the Activity page of any place. Streams are updated when someone creates a document, replies to a blog post, posts a status update, and so on.

Examples of activities which update streams

Here are some examples of activities that trigger new stream items for people, places, and content that you're following in a stream:

- Content: Someone modifies the content item, for example, edits, comments on, or replies to it.
- People: Someone posts a status update, creates a content item, or comments on a content item.
- Places: Someone updates content in the place, for example, publishes a new document, edits a blog post, shares content with a place, or comments on a document that lives in the place.
- Tags: Someone creates or modifies an item with a tag you're following in the stream, or adds the tag to a content item.

Tracking new activity in streams

Here are some ways you can track new activity in your streams:

Activity indicators When there is new activity in your streams, such as likes, comments, edits, or new content, you can see an indicator dot next to the stream name on your News page. If you hover over the indicator, you can see the count of new activity for that stream since you last viewed it.



Stream views When you select a stream, you are viewing all activity, with the **Most Recent** content listed first. If you want to view only the content you are following in that stream, you should select **Top & Trending** to sort activity by the most active content since you last viewed the stream.

> Following Most Recent | Top & Trending 1 update since last visit

Update lines As you are scrolling through your stream, you can see the End of New Updates line, so you know when you've seen all the new activity for that stream. If you continue scrolling, you can see the End of Previous Updates line that shows you the updates from last time you checked.

END OF NEW UPDATES END OF PREVIOUS UPDATES

Streams to follow

Here are some streams you can view to follow activity in your community:

All Activity: Most	You can see all public activity that you have permission to
Recent stream	see in this stream.

Custom streams	You can create your own custom streams that show only the people, places, and content items you select.		
	For more information, see Creating custom streams.		
People and Place activity streams	Each person and place in the community has an activity stream. You can see yours under your profile, and places have a place-specific stream that shows up on place pages.		
News streams	News streams are those listed to the left of your custom streams. They were created by your community manager to help you see important content. For more information about how these streams work, see Overview of News and Overview of News streams.		

Notifications about streams

You can also select your notification preferences by clicking $\ensuremath{ Your avatar > Preferences}$.

Tips for using News

The News page is the best place to explore the full range of what's happening in your community.

Use the following tips and tricks to get the most out of the News page:

- The Announcements banner shows critical headlines selected by your community manager. Just click on a headline or **Show Details** to see the full article.
- Streams shown between the News and the Following streams are curated for you by your community manager to keep you up to date on the most important community activity. You can't delete or edit these streams like you can your custom streams.
- Your Following stream is a built-in stream where you may already be automatically following some of your colleagues. You can add to your Following stream any people, places, or content that you're interested in. If you don't want to think about how to set up custom streams, Following is an easy way to mark all activity you want to check into later.
- You can create a new stream to focus on specific content, places, or people. For example, you might create a stream to watch your team's activity and a project stream to follow activity about your current project. For more information, see Creating custom streams.
- The All Activity: Top & Trending stream usually has the most valuable and interesting community activity. You see content and people that are generating a lot of likes and comments. Or, check out the All Activity: Most Recent stream to see all public activity in your community that you have permission to see. Both of these streams can be useful for adding new people and content to your custom streams.

Note: Content items can be excluded from the **Top & Trending** stream. For more information, see **Removing content items from Top and Trending**.

• Clicking the pin icon from any of your streams makes it the landing page whenever you click **Home** in the main navigation menu.

For more information about the News page, see Using News.

Support Center

The Support Center provides easy access to common questions and helps to navigate certain employee services. You won't see the Support link in the main navigation menu if your community manager has not enabled the feature or changed its the name. Depending on how your community manager has Support Center set up, you could use it to learn more about IT issues, HR benefits, or other areas important to you and other employees. You can glance at the topics presented there, or use search to look in the subset of information your community manager gathered for you.

Tips for using Inbox

Inbox shows replies, @mentions, messages, Latest Acclaim, shares, and any activity you follow.

Your Inbox shows the activity that's most you-centric – the information that's sent directly to you and has your name on it. This automatically includes @mentions, replies to discussions you're participating in, content people share with you, your latest acclaim, new follower notifications, and direct messages.

Inbox interface

To see a quick tour of the Inbox, click the following image:



Figure 1: Inbox interface

- 1. Click the unread message indicator to access your Inbox.
- 2. View only unread items.
- 3. Filter by mentions, messages, or shares, or type a name to filter by.
- 4. Message someone directly from your Inbox.
- 5. Toggle between preview mode and list mode.
- 6. Check out the different icons for message types.
- 7. Click the content title to view the published version of the content.

- 8. Click Hide new activity to stop receiving updates on that content in your Inbox.
- 9. Mark a message unread to remind you to revisit it later.

10Like, comment, or share content from the preview pane.

Inbox configuration

Depending on your preferences, everything that flows into your Inbox may result in email notifications. If available in your community, you can adjust what's emailed to you. For more information, see Customizing notifications.

Tips and tricks for using Inbox

Use the following tips and tricks in working with your Inbox:

- You can use the **Filter** menu in Inbox to sort the view to @mentions, messages, notifications, or shares.
- You can filter Inbox by participant by entering a user name in the box. You can see only the items that include this person as a participant.
- Manage your unread communications and follow-ups by using the blue dot next to messages you haven't read yet and clicking Unread Only to see only the messages marked with the blue dot.
- When you click the **Split View** icon in the top right of the Inbox stream and then select a message, you can see the content of the message in the lower pane and the list of messages in the upper pane.
- Get rid of activity on any item that no longer interests you by clicking **Hide new activity** in the lower pane of the split-pane view. The current activity stays in your Inbox, but you'll see no more update alerts for that item. For more information about notifications, see **Customizing notifications**.
- If you are following a space in Inbox, you are not also following its subspaces unless you separately decide to follow them in Inbox.
- Click the pin icon next to Inbox, Your View, or Actions to make it the landing page whenever you click the **D** button next to your avatar.
- You automatically follow all content that you create, so you receive an update notification in your Inbox whenever anyone responds to your content or changes it. This notification is updated whenever you or another user edit or comment on the content, or make another notable action. Note that if it is you who made the action, the notification is marked as read. And if the item has been updated by another user the notification is marked as unread, to attract your attention. If you have the **Unread Only** option selected, you will see only notifications about actions of other users. And if you do not want to receive notifications about this content item, click **Hide new activity** in the lower pane.

Tips for using actions

Your Actions menu is focused on just what it sounds like: things you need to get done.

When you are assigned something to do, such as a task or something that's been Marked for Action for you, you can see an alert next to Actions in the left sidebar. For more information, see Using Marking feature.

Use the following quick tips to use Actions effectively:

- Click **Action Items** to see a list of your Action Items. From here, you can Resolve them, or bring in other participants. To see the Action Items you have already resolved, click **Resolved**.
- Click Tasks to see a list of tasks assigned to you, which you can sort by project. To see the tasks you've completed, select View: Include completed. For more information, see Using projects and tasks.

Alerts

Alerts let you know that there is a new activity you might want to check out.

In the main navigation menu, you can see numerical action alerts, 💷, that indicate

new activity. For example, if you see a number next to the Inbox icon, [15], you have new items in your Inbox.

Setting up your profile

Setting up your profile is the first step to participating in the community.

Your user profile provides community members with an easy way to learn about your skills and interests. Your profile shows up in search results when community members search for keywords contained in your profile. You can update your information at any time.

To set up your profile:

- 1. Go to Your Avatar > Edit profile in the upper right corner.
- 2. On the Avatar or Photos tab, change your avatar and manage your photos.

Your avatar and other photos let people see and recognize you in person. Your avatar lets community members quickly associate your comments and status updates with a simple visual cue.

3. On the **Profile Details** tab, fill in as much profile information as you like.

Note that your profile can found when people search, so if you have professional roles or interests that would be useful for others to know about, you should include them. You may not be able to edit certain fields, such as username. Usually, the community manager sets up these fields for you.

4. On the **Privacy** tab, edit your privacy settings.

These control how different types of users see your profile. For more information on privacy settings, see Setting up content visibility options.

5. Click Finished.

The profile is set up and becomes available in search.

Updating your status

Status updates are a quick, informal way to let people know you're active and engaged in the community. You can include an @mention, image, link, or video link in your post.

You can post an update by typing a brief update in the **What's going on?** box at the top of any stream. With a status update, you can tell others what you're doing right now, for example, "Loved the company pizza at lunch today. Thanks, @HR team!" or "Slogging through the #TPS #report. Ugh!" You can post a status update for the entire community (default) or limit it to a specific group. For more information about status updates, see Posting status update in groups and Status update tips and tricks.

Posting a status update

To post a status update:

- 1. In the main navigation menu, click 🥂 and then click Status Update.
- 2. In the Post a status update dialog box, type your status.

You add images, @mentions, links, or YouTube video links to your status updates. For more information, see Adding images, links, or YouTube links to your status update on page 17 and Adding an @mention to your status update on page 18.

3. Next to **Post in**, select a place where you want to post the update. Click **Post** to save and publish your status update.

Adding images, links, or YouTube links to your status update

You can insert an image, link, or YouTube video link to your status update. This is a good way to share information with people in your community.

- To insert an image into your update, click the upload image icon, browse to and select the image you want to insert, and then click **Post** to include it in your update.
- To insert a link or a video that others can click to open or play without leaving the community, click the link icon, type the entire link in the URL field, including http://, and then click Add.

For sites that include images, you can see an optional thumbnail image to be posted alongside your link. You can use the arrow keys to select a different thumbnail or click the x at the top right corner of the image to post your link with no image. When it looks the way you want it, click **Post**.

Alternatively, you can also type the URL directly in the post box, then type a space and wait for the thumbnail to populate.

Adding an @mention to your status update

You can use an @mention in your status update to call out specific people, content, and places. This can be helpful if you want to point someone to a specific item or make sure someone gets your update in their Inbox. When you @mention a person in your status update, the update appears in that person's Inbox.

For more information about @mentions, see Alerts for people, places, and content items on page 23.

Filtering for status updates

If you want to see a specific person status updates, go to their profile page and click **Activity > Status Updates**.

Joining groups

Joining and participating in social groups helps you become involved in your community.

A group is a place for you to connect with people who share an interest. Groups can be about anything from human resources informational groups to after-work sports groups. People join a group to participate in discussions, keep track of the group-related documents, and remain aware of the group's activities.

There are several types of groups. Depending on how your community is set up, your group options may differ. You can browse most of the groups in your community from the Places page and find groups of interest: groups anyone can fully participate in are called *public groups*. Other groups require you to be a member to participate in certain ways. Depending on how a group is set up, you may have to join it before you can collaborate on content in that group. Some groups require you to be a member to see any activity or content in a group, and others are invisible unless you get an invitation.

For more information about group types, see Types of groups.

Finding groups to join

When searching or browsing, you can find spaces, projects, and groups that are set to be visible to search. And if you found a private group you want to join, you can ask to be accepted.

To find some groups to participate in:

- 1. In the main navigation menu, go to your avatar > Your Places .
- 2. Select **All** in the left pane to see all places which you can see in your community.
- 3. Select **Groups** at the top of the page to see only the groups in your community.
- 4. Select a group type under the **All group types** list to view only groups of a particular type. You see the following options for group type:

Options	Description
PublicYou can click through and participate, or foll group to see updates from the group in the (Public groups don't have members.)	
Public Restricted	You can click through and participate. You can reply or comment and create some kinds of content without joining the group, but for full authorship rights, you need to be approved for membership by a member of the group.
Private	You can see that the group exists. But you need to request membership if you want to see what's in a private group. The group owner must approve your membership.
Private Unlisted	You must be invited to this group to see it.

Restriction: You won't see any Private: Unlisted groups here unless you are invited to the group (or has already joined it).

For more information, see Types of groups.

- 5. Use the filtering options to find groups that interest you. For example, type accounting in the **Filter by text** area to find all accounting-related groups.
- 6. Click the group title to open and look at the group.
- 7. To join a group that requires membership, go to the group's landing page, then go to **Actions** > **Join group**.
- 8. To join a private group, you can click **Ask to join this group** and wait for the group administrators to approve or reject your request.

Accepting invitations to groups

If you are invited to join a private or public restricted group, you should accept the invitation to join the group.

You can find and accept the invitation in your Inbox (on the web app), or on the group page (in Jive Daily). Note that the invitation email contains only instructions for joining and a group link – but you still need to accept the invitation before you join the group.

Restriction: You won't see any Private: Unlisted groups here unless you are invited to the group (or has already joined it).

To accept invitation on the web app from Inbox:

This option is available only from the web app.

- 1. Go to Inbox.
- 2. Click on Notifications in the list.
- 3. Find a notification titled Invitation Notification, check the group name, and click Accept to join the group.

Notific	ations			Pending	Archived
1	INVITATION NO Administrate Accept	TIFICATION or invited yo Reject	u to join the group 🚇 PrivateGroup		2 hours ago

Alternatively, you can click **Reject** to decline the invitation.

To accept invitation from group landing page:

This option is available from both the web app and Jive Daily.

1. Click on the link from the invitation email. Or search for the group and go to its home page.

Note: While you have a standing invitation, you can the group in search results even if it is set as Unlisted.

2. Click Accept the Invitation to join the group.

Rating, liking, and marking content

You can rate, like, and mark content, so others know it's useful.

Good content deserves attention. You can help improve the popularity of a blog post, discussion, document, or other content by rating and liking it. Popularity determines whether a piece of content is promoted in certain content tiles; for example, the Popular Content and Answered Questions tiles. The more people who view, like, and award 3- to 5-star ratings to a piece of content, the more popular it becomes.

Marking content helps others quickly see what has been decided, marked for action, or was a success.

- To like something, click Like or the thumbs up icon.
 - Notice the like counter increments by one.
 - Click on the like counter to see who else liked the content.
 - Likes also contribute to status rankings for the person who created the content.
- To *rate* something, click the stars beneath **My Rating** at the end of a document, blog post, or other content item.
 - Notice the rating counter increment by one and the average number of stars that content has received.
- To mark something, click Actions on a comment or reply.
 - This helps others see which comment is the Decision, needs Action, or is a Success. You can also mark a reply **Helpful**.

Note: You may not see all of these options depending on how your community manager has set up your community. For more information, see Using Marking feature.

Creating content

You can create items of the types available in your community. You should choose a content type based on your collaborative goals.

To create a content item:

• Click Z, and then select the content type of the item.

For example, you can draft a discussion, question, document, or blog post.

Note:	You may	not see	the Create	menu	(🖉 -)	if your	community	manager	disabled
the fea	ature.								

Most collaborative activities occur in discussions, questions, and documents. Blog posts are typically used for viewpoint essays and other long-form communications that don't invite collaboration. For a more detailed analysis of the differences between these types of content, see Differences between documents, blog posts, and discussions.

Private and public content

By default, the content you create is public in the community and searchable. The power of a community is that everyone in the community can benefit from shared content. However, in some cases, you may want to limit who sees content and who can collaborate on it with you. For more information about deciding who can see and collaborate on your documents, see Using documents. For more information about private discussions, see Using discussions and questions. You can also choose to publish your content in a private social group that limits content to approved members.

For more information about private and public content, see Public and private communications.

Monitoring your content

You automatically follow all content that you create, so you receive an update notification in your Inbox whenever anyone responds to your content or changes it. This notification is updated whenever you or another user edit or comment on the content, or make another notable action. Note that if it is you who made the action, the notification is marked as read. And if the item has been updated by another user the notification is marked as unread, to attract your attention. If you have the **Unread Only** option selected, you will see only notifications about actions of other users. And if you do not want to receive notifications about this content item, click **Hide new activity** in the lower pane.

Note that you can delete any comments on your content if required.

For more information about Inbox, see Tips for using Inbox on page 14.

Updating or deleting your content

You can update any content item you created, as well as delete the content entirely.

Participating

You can engage with other users in the community by commenting on content or joining discussions.

Collaboration is your main activity in the community. When you look around your community and discover documents and conversations, you can take advantage of the opportunity to comment and collaborate. The following guidelines can help you get started with participating:

- To comment on a content item, you should click **Add a Comment** or **Reply** at the bottom of a document, blog post, question, or discussion. You can reply to an individual message in a thread or the original post. Everyone reading the thread sees your response.
- Documents have owners who control whether you can change the content of the document, comment on it, or view it. You may be able to see documents that you don't have permission to comment on or participate in. If you think you should be

able to comment on a document and you can't, contact the author and ask for permission.

- If you can edit a document, you can see Edit near the Actions menu.
- A comment or a reply may have a badge showing Decision, Action Item, or Success. These badges help you avoid endless discussion and quickly determine the state or outcome of the conversation. For more information about marking, see Using Marking feature.
- Comments and replies may also be liked or marked as helpful. These are tallied for reporting activity in places or the entire community.
- A badge shows others how helpful someone has been to you. To give someone a badge, go to their profile page and click **Actions** > **Give Badge**.

Alerts for people, places, and content items

By using @mentions, you can alert people, places, and groups that you're talking about them.

When you create, or comment on, content in your community, you have the ability to @mention a person, place, or piece of content. For example, you might post "Trivia Night was a success for Team Chaos! @Trivia_Night_Group" to alert the Trivia Night Group or "@Joey_Ramone, please check out my question @Why is the Submit form not working today?" to focus the attention of Joey Ramone on the document.

When someone is @mentioned in a piece of content, a notification of the activity flows into their Inbox. Members and followers of groups you mention are notified in their Following stream and in any other streams that are following that group.

To mention a person, a place, or a content item:

1. In the text editor, type the "@" symbol (or click @ Mention if you are using the content editor).

A search dialog opens and suggests possible matches. Scroll through the list of people, places, and content. To narrow matches, use an underscore (_) instead of a space. For example, **@Mike_D** would match the Mikes whose last name begins with D.

2. Select the correct match from the list.

A link to the person or place that you chose shows up in your content. When you publish your content, the people and places that were @mentioned are notified.

Finding stuff you need

Here's a quick guide on looking and finding what you need.

You can make use of the following ways to keep track of and find everything that's important to you. Note that as you develop behavior patterns in the community, Jive recommends relevant content, people, and places based on your activity.

For more information about searching, see Finding people, places, and content.

Searching for	Let Jive finish your thought with its predictive searching feature.			
specific	When you click in the upper right corner, type something and press Enter, Jive searches everything in your community and returns the most closely related items. You can scroll the content list to find what you need. Alternatively, you can click something listed below People or Places .			
Browsing for something more general	There are a few ways you can browse people, places, and content, depending on how your community manager has set things up. To browse your own content and places you follow, click your avatar in the upper right corner, and then click Your Content or Your Places . On the page, you can use the options in the left sidebar to narrow the results by how they relate to you. For example, you may be the author of the content or a participant in the discussion. Or you can look at all content in the community.			
	To browse people, click either the Browse or People in your main navigation menu. From there you can sort people using the links in the left sidebar. For example, you can look for your Followers or the Org Chart .			
Filtering what you're browsing	Once you're browsing, you have sorting, filtering, and keyword search options, including things like sort by date, filter by tags, or search specific text, which all help you find what you need as quickly as possible. For more information on filtering, see Browse and filter content, people, and places.			
Bookmarking items	From any piece of content, you can create a bookmark by clicking Actions > Bookmark in the menu in the upper right			
	corner. Later, to see the content you've bookmarked, click at the upper right corner, and then click Bookmarks . If you don't see your bookmarked item listed there, click Show all my bookmarks . For more information, see Using bookmarks.			

Checking what your co-workers follow	Browse the people and places that your co-worker or someone with similar interests follows by going to their profile page and click Content/People/Places > Following . This is a great way to find things you might also want to follow.
Checking your history and suggestions	You can check the latest items you viewed by clicking at the upper-right corner, and then selecting Recently Viewed . If you don't see what you need from the list, click Show all my recently viewed content . You can also click Suggestions to see your frequently viewed items.

Pinning pages for quick access

You can pin any of your streams to the News (or Home) button and pin any of your Inbox pages (Inbox, Your View, or Actions) to the Inbox icon. You can also pin either News or Inbox to your community logo. This makes getting to your favorite pages comfortable.

News or Depending on how your community manager has set up your community, you can pin any of the streams listed on your News page to the News or Home button in the main navigation menu.

• To pin a stream, click the stream name you want to set, and then

click 🖈 in the upper right of the stream.

Now when you click News or Home from anywhere in the application, you are taken to the page you pinned.

- To restore the News stream as the default News or Home view, go to the currently pinned stream and un-pin it by clicking the pin icon.
- **Inbox** You can pin any of the pages listed on your Inbox page to the Inbox notification icon, including Inbox, Your View, and Actions.
 - To pin the page, click the button and then the pin icon next to the page's name in the left sidebar.

Now when you click the Inbox notification icon from anywhere in the application, you are taken to the page you pinned.

Community To pin News, Home, or Inbox to your community logo:

- 1. Click your user avatar in the upper right corner, and then click **Preferences**.
- 2. Under Personal Landing Page, select either Home, News, or Inbox
- 3. Click Save

You may only see a couple of these options, depending on how your community manager has set up the community.

To pin a specific News stream to your community logo:

• Click the news stream you want to pin, and then its pin icon.

Now when you click the community logo from anywhere in the application, you are taken to the page or stream you pinned.

Jive places: spaces, groups, and projects

A place in Jive is essentially a container that houses all the collaborative content for a certain subject or team. There are three types of places: **Spaces**, **Groups**, and **Projects**. The differences between them can sometimes be confusing, so here're the basics of each one.

Spaces

Spaces are built in a hierarchy, with the ability to have a network of multi-level subspaces underneath them. They also use permissions, set by community administrators, to define who can see and do different things in the space. Permissions get inherited by any sub-spaces unless they are customized for that space, so if a user can do something in one space, this user can do it in the sub-spaces as well (unless the permissions have been customized). Any type of content can be created in a space, unless it has been turned off for a particular space by community administrators. Due to their hierarchical nature, spaces are typically used to represent organizations and departments within a company, and other concepts that require a network of places linked together.

Social groups

Groups, or *social groups*, are isolated containers within a community; they have no ties to other places and cannot have sub-groups. Permissions are managed on a per-group basis by the original group creator or the admins selected for the group, or both. Groups can also house any type of content unless one or more is turned off by community administrators. Because they are a freely created containers, groups get used most often for topic-specific collaboration, rather than something general to a team. They also get used for collaboration between specific teams or different departments that often work together closely and rely on each other.

For more information, see Using content and Types of groups.

Projects

Projects can only reside within a space or a group; they cannot stand alone. However, they can still house any type of content unless one or more is turned off by community administrators. Permissions get inherited from the place in which the project was created. Projects also get created with a Start Date and an End Date and come with additional titles on their pages that display the progress being made in the project (if the project administrator keeps them up to date). Projects are generally used for short-term projects, which users need to collaborate on and house the content for in a single area.

For more information, see Using projects and tasks.

	Spaces	Groups	Projects
Hierarchi- cal?	Yes	No	No
Can be pri- vate?	Yes, via permissions	Yes, via group set- tings.	Depends on parent place
Access per- missions	Defined in the Admin Console. Inherited by sub-spaces	Defined in group set- tings. No inheritance	Inheritedfromcontain- ing place. Not cus- tomizable
Create per- missions	Defined in the Admin Console. Inherited by sub-spaces	Any user	Inheritedfromcontain- ing place. Not cus- tomizable
Content al- lowed	Any; may be customized or restricted, or both by community administra- tors	Any; may be cus- tomized or restricted, or both, by communi- ty administrators	Any; may be cus- tomized or restricted, or both, by communi- ty administrators
Best uses	Large-scalecollaborative needs with sub-space ability, such as those of an entire department or office, or an expansive topic	Smaller-scale collab- orative needs either by a specific audi- ence or a more spe- cialized topic	Short term area to collaborate on a finite topic

Comparison of place properties

Understanding pages in places

If you are a place owner, you can customize the available pages and how these pages look.

Note: To customize a place, you need to own the place or have the right permissions: *Manage community* (administrative permission) or *Manage Social Group* (social group permission).

Activity, Overview, and custom pages can be customized for every place in the community. The main difference in the customization means: Activity and custom pages use tiles, while Overview pages use widgets. Place templates, which are customized for specific kinds of collaboration, always use tiles. Tiles use newer technology and are mobile-optimized; widgets cannot be displayed on a mobile device. Note that if you disable the Overview page in a place, you can choose to add additional tile-based custom pages, which let you spread out your content over multiple tabs with less content (and thus better mobile usability).

Activity and custom pages with tiles

Activity and custom pages are responsive in design. That's why you should use Activity or custom pages with tiles if:

- Your community heavily relies on mobile usage. In this case, you should also configure a community home page for mobile browser users.
- The audience of your place heavily relies on mobile usage even if the community as a whole is not. For example, many sales teams operate remotely.
- Streamed content, such as a Chatter or Facebook stream, must be brought into your place from outside the community.
- Custom pages are available, adding up to five customizable pages with tiles to every place.

For more information about tiles, see Using tiles and Tile reference.

Overview pages with widgets

Important: We do not recommend that you use widgets and widgetized Overview pages in your community.

Even though we do not recommend that, you have the option to enable an Overview page when you're setting up a new place and widgets are enabled in your community.

Widgets are a legacy feature in Jive. Tiles present a better option for landing pages because they are responsive whereas widgets are not. No new development is being done on widgets.

Widgets are disabled by default, but you can activate the Overview page or check to see if you have one by navigating to **gear icon** > **Settings** > **Advanced Options** and selecting **Overview page**.

Note: You must have widgetized Overview pages enabled in your community. To enable widgets in your community, you need to contact **Support**. For more information, see **Getting started with the new Jive Support Portal** on Worx.

Using an Overview page with widgets:

- You need to take advantage of the customer service widgets set.
- You have an Overview page you created in an earlier version of Jive, and you're not ready to change the look and feel of the place.
- Your community or the audience of your place doesn't rely heavily on mobile usage.

Inviting new community members

Some communities allow you to invite other people to join.

If enabled for your community, you can invite people from outside the community to join. When you send an invitation, they receive an email with instructions on how they can set up their account in the community.

To invite people to join the community:

1. In the main navigation menu, click People .

This may be located under the **Browse** menu.

2. In the left pane, click Send Invites .

You won't see this option if your administrator has disabled the ability to invite people from outside to join your community.

3. Enter a complete email address of the invitee.

You can send invitations to more than one person by adding their email addresses in the box and separating them by commas (",").

- 4. Edit the note if you want to tailor it for your invitees.
- 5. Click Send Invitation.